

R8C,M16C Integrated Development Environment for RL78 Family

Migration to New Integrated Development Environment "CubeSuite+": Onchip Debug

Renesas Electronics CorporationMCU Business UnitMCU Software DivisionMCU Tool Product Marketing Department2012/10/18Rev. 1.02



00000-A

Introduction

This document describes how to migrate from the High-performance Embedded Workshop for R8C,M16C Family to CubeSuite+ for RL78 and how to operate E1 and E20 emulators in the CubeSuite+ environment, this explanation is based on CubeSuite+ V1.02.00.

For toolchains, refer to the following three materials.

- Integrated Development Environment for RL78 Family Migration to Integrated Development Environment "CubeSuite+": Build,.

- Integrated Development Environment for RL78 Family Migration to Integrated Development Environment "CubeSuite+": Coding,.

- Integrated Development Environment for RL78 Family Migration to Integrated Development Environment "CubeSuite+": Starting,.

Also refer to the tutorial guide provided by CubeSuite+ for how to use tools.

The tutorial guide is available by selecting [Help] -> [Tutorial] from the CubeSuite+ menu.



Tutorial Guide



Contents

- 1. Integrated Development Environment and Emulators
- 2. Differences between the Target Interfaces (for OCD)
- 3.Changing the Debugger
- 4. Entering an ID Code
- 5. Securing Resources
- 6. Setting the On-Chip Debugging Option Byte
- 7.Where Do We Make Settings when Connecting an Emulator?
- 8. Connecting an Emulator
- 9. Disconnecting the Emulator
- 10. Downloading a Program
- 11. Registering Additional Download Files
- 12. Starting/Stopping a Program
- 13. Difference in MCU Operation during a Break (Peripheral Break Function)

- 14. Viewing/Changing Memory Data and Variables While the Program Is Running
- 15. Automatically Updating Memory Data and Variables While the Program Is Running
- 16. Setting Breakpoints
- 17. Causing a Break on Access to a Variable
- 18. Filling Memory
- 19. Saving Memory Data
- 20. Flash Self-Programming
- 21. How to program to check Operation on the Stand-Alone MCU
- 22. Action Event (Printf Event)
- 23. Viewing Lists of Variables and Functions
- 24. Analytical Graphs
- 25. Debugging Functions of Emulators (OCD)



1. Integrated Development Environment and Emulators



*This document describes about On-chip Debuggers.

2. Differences between the Target Interfaces (for OCD)



3. Changing the Debugger

The HEW allowed users to select a debugger (E8a,E1/E20 emulator or simulator) in the process of changing the debug session or the target shown in the [Debug Settings] dialog box. The CubeSuite+, on the other hand, allows users to select a debugger on the project tree. The procedure to change the debugger is described on the following pages.



3. Changing the Debugger

(1) The debug tool name (debug tool) on the project tree panel indicates the currently selected debugger.

The following example shows that the E1 Emulator is selected:





3. Changing the Debugger

(2) To change the debugger, right-click the debug tool name (debug tool) to open a pop-up menu. Select [Using Debug Tool] from the pop-up menu to select the debug tool you want to use.





4. Entering an ID Code

Both the R8C/M16C and RL78 require entering of an ID code.

However, there are some differences regarding the setting and authentication of the ID code and the action that is taken if the ID code does not match.

	ID code size	Address of the ID Code	Setting the ID Code	Authenticating the ID Code	Action Taken When the ID Code Does Not Match	Valid for the On-board Programmer?
R8C M16C	7 bytes	0xFFDF, 0xFFE3, 0xFFEB, 0xFFEF, 0xFFF3, 0xFFF7, 0xFFFB	Embed the code in the user program when building.	When all ID is FFh, It is authenticated automatically at a debugger start-up, and when other, enter ID into a dialog.	A debugger is not started (the contents of the flash memory are held).	Yes
RL78	10 bytes	0xC4 to 0xCD	Embed the code in the user program when building.	Enter an ID code for the debugger in advance.	Depends on the setting of the on-chip debugging option byte*	No (only valid during debugging)

For details, see E1/E20 Emulator Additional Document for User's Manual (Notes on Connecting RL78).



4. Entering an ID Code

In the HEW, the [ID Code verification] dialog box opens at startup if an ID code has been written in the MCU. In CubeSuite+, on the other hand, an ID code must be set on the [**Property**] panel before the emulator is started up. Set an ID code by referring to the following figures:

	Embedded Workshop ⁴
I	D Code verification
	Please input the ID code being written in the flash memory.
	ID Code: 01020304050607
	- input Mode
	Hex : Specify ID code by hexadecimal 14 digits.
	C ASCII : Specify ID code by ASCII character within 7 letters.
	Cancel

Example:

High-performance

[ID Code] dialog box of the E8a for the R8C

🔘 CubeSuite+

RL78 E1(Serial) Property	
Internal ROM/RAM	
Size of internal ROM[KBytes]	64
Size of internal RAM[Bytes]	4096
Size of DataFlash memory[KBytes]	4
🗆 Clock	
Main clock frequency [MHz]	Using internal clock
Sub clock frequency[kHz]	Using internal clock
Monitor clock	System
Connection with Target Board	5
Communication method	1 line type (TOOL0)
Power target from the emulator.(MAX 200mA)	Yes
Supply voltage	5.0V
∃ Flash	
Security ID	😬 000000000000000000
Permit hash programming	168
Use wide voltage mode	Yes
Erase flash ROM when starting	No
Security ID Sets the security ID (20 digits in hexadecimal) for For details on security ID authentication, see the I	reading the code in the internal ROM or internal flash memory Emulator user's manual.
Connect Settings Debug Tool Settings	Download File Settings 🖌 Hook Transaction Settings /

5. Securing Resources

When in use with the RL78, OCD takes up some user resources. These areas should not be used by the user program so keep them reserved (e.g. by using the build tool).



Reserved areas to be used by E1/E20 (RL78)*

5. Securing Resources

The address of the area for monitoring by the debugger can be specified on the [Link Options] sheet of the [Property] panel of the build tool.

🛞 CubeSuite+

2 @ 2	CA78K0R Property		
Timer	Debug Information Add debug information	Yes	
Real-time Clock	Input File Ising link directive file	n lie de	
- Inter∨al Timer	Output File	1_1.0	
Clock Output/Buzzer Output 	Output folder Output file name	%BuildModeName% %ProjectName%.Imf	
Voltage Detector	Force linking against error	No	
- CA78KOR (Build Tool) 	Device		
🕀 Program Analyzer (Analyze Tool)	Option byte values for OCD	Yes(-go)	
E-JP File	Debug monitor area start address Debug monitor area size[byte]	EEOO 512	
Code Generator	Set user option byte	Yes(-gb)	
rsysteminit.c	Specify mirror area	MAA=0(-mi0)	
	Boot area load module file name	No	
□ r_cgc_user.c 	Control allocation to self RAM area	No	
	E Stack		
Image: Second			
'= r_cg_macrodriver.h '= r_cg_userdefine.h	Common O Compile Op Assemble	Link Opti ROMization / Object Con / Vai	



6. Setting the On-Chip Debugging Option Byte

The on-chip debugging option byte can be set on the [Link Options] sheet of the [Property] panel of the build tool.

🛞 CubeSuite+

2 @ 2	🔨 CA78K0R Property	
Image: Startup Image:	 CA78K0R Property Debug Information Add debug information Input File Using link directive file Output File Output folder Output file name Force linking against error Library Device Use on-chip debug Option byte values for OCD Debug monitor area start address Debug monitor area size[byte] Set user option byte User option byte value Specify mirror area Set flash start address Boot area load module file name Control allocation to self RAM area Message Stack 	Yes r_lk.dr %BuildModeName% %ProjectName%.lmf No Yes(-qo) ₩84 ₩84 ₩8 FE00 512 Yes(-gb) ₩8 EFFFE8 MAA=0(-mi0) No No
Image: second system Image: second system Image: second	Common O Compile Op Assemble	Link Opti ROMization Object Con Va



7. Where Do We Make Settings when Connecting an Emulator?

In the HEW, the [Emulator Setting] dialog boxes open to make settings when connecting an emulator. In the CubeSuite+, on the other hand, you need to make settings on the [Property] panel before connecting an emulator by taking the following procedure.

Double-click the debug tool name (debug tool) on the [Project Tree] panel to open the Properties window of the debug tool.





7.Where Do We Make Settings when Connecting an Emulator?

In the case of HEW, settings required for connection are made in the [Emulator Setting] dialog box during the process of connecting the emulator. In the case of CubeSuite+, on the other hand, these settings must be made in the [Property] panel of the debugger before connecting the emulator.

(1) The [Emulator Setting] dialog box of HEW corresponds to the [Connect Settings] tab of



00 00 0	Size of internal DOMIVE test		
S	size or internal molw[hoytes]	64	
	Size of internal RAM[Bytes]	4096	
2	Size of DataFlash memory[KBytes]	4	
	Clock		
N	Main clock frequency (MHz)	Using internal clock	
S	Sub clock frequency[kHz]	Using internal clock	
N	Aonitor clock	System	
	Connection with Target Board		Some functions
C	Communication method	1 line type (TOOL0)	
F	Power target from the emulator (MAX 200mA)	Yes	including power
S	Supply voltage	5.0V	supply are
ΞF	lash		correspondent
S	Security ID	0000000000000	conceptingent.
F	Permit flash programming	Yes	
U	Jse wide voltage mode	Yes	
E	Frase flash ROM when starting	No	

🕅 CubeSuite+

High-performance

Example:

CubeSuite+.

[Emulator Setting] dialog box of the E8a for the R8C

On CubeSuite+, the device needs to be selected during the process of creating a project.



7. Where Do We Make Settings when Connecting an Emulator?

(2) [Configuration] dialog box of the HEW corresponds to the [Debug Tool Settings] tab of the CubeSuite+.

		? 🔀
R5F2135CC		•
Normal		•
Disable	OK	Tancel
	RSF213SCC Normal	RSF213SOC Normal Disable OK

Example:

[Configuration] dialog box of the E8a for the R8C

CubeSuite+

□ Memory [9] □ Memory mappings [9] ∨erify on writing to memory Yes □ Access Memory While Running Access by stopping execution △ Access by stopping execution Yes □ Update display during the execution Yes	
 Memory mappings [9] Verify on writing to memory Yes Access Memory While Running Access by stopping execution Yes Update display during the execution Yes 	
Verify on writing to memory Yes Access Memory While Running Access by stopping execution Yes Update display during the execution Yes	
Access Memory While Running Access by stopping execution Yes Update display during the execution Yes	
Access by stopping execution Yes Update display during the execution Yes	
Update display during the execution Yes	
Display update interval[ms] 500	
🗄 Break	
🗆 Maskfor Input Signal	
Mask TARGET RESET signal No	
Mask INTERNAL RESET signal No	
Break	
Connect Settings Debug Tool Settings Download	File S



8. Connecting an Emulator

Select [Debug] -> [Connect to Debug Tool] from the CubeSuite+ menu to establish connection to the selected emulator (debug tool).

Upon completion of the connection, the debug tool name appears on the status bar at the bottom right of the window.

🛞 CubeSuite+



Note: If an ID code has been written in the MCU, set an ID code in advance according to "2. Entering an ID Code."

9. Disconnecting the Emulator

To disconnect the emulator, select [Disconnect from Debug Tool] from the menu or click the 🚲 button on the debug toolbar.

🛞 CubeSuite+

	Deb	ug Tool Window Help
	D.	Download
	5	Build & Download F6
	88	Connect to Debug Tool
	-	Hot Plug-in
	ď	Upload
4	X	Disconnect from Debug Tool Shift+F6
		Stop Shift+F5





10. Downloading a Program

Selecting [Debug] -> [Download] from the menu or clicking the button on the debug toolbar starts downloading specified files.

Selecting [Debug] -> [Build & Download] from the menu or clicking the button on the debug toolbar builds a project and then starts downloading the specified files.

If no debug tool is connected, CubeSuite+ connect debug tool automatically before downloading.



ST. ColeSchol - Washer	(w)		
the tax may mover that take	the moder with		
100 mars 1 100 mm - 100 mm	THE REPORT OF TH	A NUMBER OF STREET, ST	
0. XXI	CONTRACT PLANE -	direct of the second second second	
headfear P.K.	Company State		
101	AL OID ENCEROUS		
	0.044		
S 2 STAT Present	that rive spans	tiful.	
4 manhating	Har stol. Imparts (M-1)	12 1000	
6 CONTRACT 100	Kiter charging of the clicit, course or redisplayeered lisch energy	No. 1	
and the second second	Connection with (notifier		
Contraction and the former of	Crudets and the	D 986.638	
- 3 m	Consector with Larget Board	-	
a 20 Mathematical permanent in	Parm lage has the mades (NDC 2004)	THE SHOP	
- NY 10	and the second	0.00	
bil doit s	414 (W1911)	108	
- 27 saladra	11 Flash		
Contraction of the second seco	Input Mode of B code	Equity the ID units on a 12-big it becade and	
E Brance	E-cale	M STARTARDARDARDARDARDARDA	
and an address of the second s	Not Ref aut added	M 100	
- Market	South Balancia Balancia		
- Martine a	Caper.niesgifesiles of CP'8		
- Mitted Conversions	Note proceeding.	Tright the state	
	Fotos	Discontent data	
	C Extend link	Present line	
	III E-be-all-ab debelowide	H	
		6	
	Size of the improving the second seco		Dullu & Duwilloau
	Convert Settings / Debug Soff-Settings / Download/Ne Setting	Koli Funantini Settergi	
	Dup.t.		**
	Direct True Search in page in failed, breast the grap in the search of the page in the search of the	non system has already constantial to the mathemat. The	har
	NAME AND ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF		
	INCOME NAME AND ADDRESS OF ADDRES	a second Will be used characteristics of	
	(BUR)		
e	All-Wessages Bolton Wedd Tool		
Prilow Hel, Printers Print	the Physics Nets Philes, Phile Pa	Marcola, Michigan Mingline Mingline Mingline	a n Tu

11. Registering Additional Download Files

Add download files in the [Download File Settings] sheet on the [Property] panel.(1) Select [Download files] and click [...] button on the right.(2) The [Download Files] dialog box opens. Click the [Add] button.





11. Registering Additional Download Files

(3) Specify the file name and file type in the [Download file information] field and then click the [OK] button.



Note: When downloading is performed, all of the registered files are downloaded. To download only desired files, set [Download object] and [Download symbol information] to "Yes" in this window only for files you want to download.

11. Registering Additional Download Files

(4) The available file formats (extensions) for the R8C/M16C and for the RL78 are not the same. For details, see the table below.

	Load Module Format	Hexadecimal File	Binary File
R8C/M16C	*.x30 *.abs	*.mot *.hex	*.bin
RL78	*.lmf	*.hex	*.bin
Purpose	To be downloaded for source-level debugging	To be used for writing by a ROM programmer, etc.	Data file



12. Starting/Stopping a Program

You can start or stop a program and reset the CPU from the menu or toolbar in the same way as the HEW (see below).





CubeSuite+ menu





13. Difference in MCU Operation during a Break (Peripheral Break Function)

While timers and serial communication interfaces in the R8C/M16C continue to operate while CPU breaks in execution by the emulator, CubeSuite+ for the RL78 allows you to use the [Debug Tool Settings] sheet to select whether or not those modules are to be stopped while CPU breaks.



In the case of HEW for the R8C/M16C, you need to use the Start/Stop functions to create and embed code that will stop the peripheral modules if this is required. (R8C/5x series have the Peripheral Break Function)

Selectable on CubeSuite+ for the RL78

CubeSuite+	

🔗 RL78 E1(Serial) Property						
🗆 Memory						
Memory mappings	[9]					
Verify on writing to memory	Yes					
Access Memory While Running						
Access by stopping execution	No					
Update display during the execution	Yes					
Display update interval[ms]	500					
🖯 Break						
First using type of breakpoint	Software break					
Stop emulation of timer group when stopping	g Yes					
Stop emulation of serial group when stoppin	ig Yes					
🗆 Maskfor Input Signal 💦 🗾 🗾						
Mask TARGET RESET signal	No					
Mask INTERNAL RESET signal	No					
First using type of breakpoint Specifies the type of the breakpoint to be preferentially used when setting breakpoints for execution source or execution address.						
Connect Settings Debug Tool Settings	Download File S					

14. Viewing/Changing Memory Data and Variables While the Program Is Running

To view or change memory data and variables while the program is running in CubeSuite+, make settings on the [Property] panel by using the following procedure:

(1) Open the [Debug Tool Settings] sheet on the [Property] panel of the debug tool.
(2) Set [Access by stopping execution] in the [Access Memory While Running] field to [Yes]. Memory data and variables can be viewed while the program is running.



15. Automatically Updating Memory Data and Variables While the Program Is Running

To automatically update memory data and variables via CubeSuite+, make settings on the [Property] panel by using the following procedure:

(1) Open the [Debug Tool Settings] sheet on the [Propertiy] panel of the debug tool.

(2) Set [Access by stopping execution] and [Update display during execution] in the [Access Memory While Running] field to [Yes].

Information displayed on the memory and watch panels is automatically updated while the program is running.

To change the update interval, modify the [Display update interval] value.



16. Setting Breakpoints

(1) You can set breakpoints in the main area (enclosed by a red line in the figure below) on the editor panel of CubeSuite+.

Set break points: Single-clicking a line with an address.

Delete break points: Single-clicking a line for which a breakpoint has been set.





16. Setting Breakpoints

(2) Select a breakpoint type (software break or hardware break) for [First using type of breakpoint] in the [Debug Tool Settings] sheet on the [Property] panel. (Software break is selected in the example below.)



(3) If the number of breakpoints of the selected type exceeds the limit, the other type of breakpoints are used.

Event marks indicate the types of breakpoints.

🐠 : Software break 🛛 懸 : Hardv

: Hardware break



16. Setting Breakpoints

(4) You can check the breakpoint setting on the [Events] panel.
 Select [View] -> [Event] from the CubeSuite+ menu to open the [Events] panel.
 Unnecessary breakpoints can be deleted or disabled on the [Events] panel.





17. Causing a Break on Access to a Variable

You can use the watch or editor panel to make a setting to cause a break on access to a specific variable.

(1) On the watch or editor panel, right-click the variable that you want to set a break when it is accessed.

(2) Select [Access Break] (or [Break Settings] on the editor panel) and select [Set Read Combination Break to], [Set Write Combination Break to], or [Set R/W Combination Break to].



17. Causing a Break on Access to a Variable

(3) Enter a value to set a data condition (or leave the box blank if no data condition is needed).



Note: Enter a decimal number here. When entering a hexadecimal number, add "0x" to the head (e.g. 0xAA).



18. Filling Memory

Memory can be filled (batch change) by using the [Memory Initialize] dialog box. (1) Right-click on the [Memory] panel to open a pop-up menu, and select [Fill] from the pop-up menu.

(2) The [Memory Initialize] dialog box opens. Enter addresses (start address and end address) and initialization data, and then click the [OK] button.



Note: Enter decimal numbers here. When entering hexadecimal numbers, add "0x" to the head of each number.

19. Saving Memory Data

[Data Save] dialog box is used to save memory data.

Select [Debug] -> [Upload...] from the menu.

The [Data Save] dialog box opens. Specify the file name, type, and range of memory data you want to save, and then click the [Save] button.

© CubeSuite+	
Data Save - Upload	Enter the name of a file to be saved
File Name: C:\Documents and Settings\toolgi.RENESAS-L8ELZKF\My Docum 💌 🔽 🛄	Litter the name of a file to be saved.
File Type: Motorola S-format (*.mot) Save Range Address/Symbol:	Specify a file type (Intel Hex, Motorola S, or binary).
	Specify a memory range.
Save Cancel Help	

Note: Enter decimal numbers here. When entering hexadecimal numbers, add "0x" to the head of each number.



20. Flash Self-Programming

The RL78 supports a self-programming feature for the rewriting of data in flash memory by user programs. This is accomplished for user applications by using the self-programming library for the RL78.



prom programming/flash libraries/index.jsp

select [**Add** -> **Add File**] from the list, then click on the [**Files of type**] pull-down menu and select the file type.

21. How to program to check Operation on the Stand-Alone MCU

If you wish to check operation on the RL78 MCU as a stand-alone device after debugging, use the Renesas Flash Programmer (flash programming software) to program the data to the flash memory instead of using CubeSuite+.



In the case of HEW for the R8C/M16C, you need to select the mode that is suitable for debugging and also equivalent to the on-chip programmer.

	C Keep Flash and Connect	
•	Program Flash	
	C Debugging of CPU rewrite mode	
	Execute the user program after ending the debugger.	

In the case of the RL78, on the other hand, you need to use the Renesas Flash Programmer instead of CubeSuite+.

Deserve Cla		
Program File:	RI 78 G13 Tutorial Basic Operation hex	Browse
Command:	Autoprocedure(E.P)	
	Start	
	PASS	
20% 30%		
40% 50%		
60% 70%		
80% 90%		
PASS		
Autoprocedure(E.P) PA	SS	

The Renesas Flash Programmer is software that is used to program to the flash memory of Renesas MCUs and is specialized for easy operation and functionality for programming.

22. Action Event (Printf Event)

CubeSuite+ allows the setting of a Printf event as an action event.

A Printf event is used to stop the program momentarily at a specified address and make software execute the printf command. When a Printf event is set in the [Action Event] dialog box, the program stops before execution of the instruction at the address where the event is set, and CubeSuite+ outputs the value of the variables to the [Output] panel.



23. Viewing Lists of Variables and Functions

CubeSuite+ can automatically display lists of variables and functions used in the project.

Select [View -> Program Analyzer] from the menu.

🔘 CubeSuite+

	Program Analy	zer	• 6	Function List						
. 🛃	Show Current I	PC Location	Ctrl+L 😽	³ Variable List						
5	Back to Last C	ursor Position		Analysis Chart						
					Function List					8
V	ariable List			8	137 22 22 1 🕫 🛫 📓	Unit of Time +				
F		2				File Name	⊽+⊨ Attribute	▼	e ⊽ ≉ Arguments	7. ^
		The blower of			R_CGC_Create	egc.c	far	void	void	1
E	Variable Name	P File Name Y	Attribute	VH Type VH	R_CGC_Get_R	cgc_user.c	far	void	void	
	HOGE	(Na Delinition)	lar,const	E B	R_PORT_Create	r_port.c	fer	void	void	
-	g_count	r_timer_user.c	near	unsigned	R_TAU0_Create	timer.c	for	void	void	
-	* avai	r_timer_user.c	near	double -	W R_TAU0_Chann	timer.c	for	void	void	
-	* I otal*	(No Definition)		un financia (Service R_TAU0_Chann	timer.c	far	void	void	
	" i otal"	r_timer_user.c	- Francisco -		R_TAU0_Chann	timer_user.c	interrupt	void	void	
<				>	👓 main	main.c	fer	void	void	
					∾ R_Systeminit	systeminit.c	for	void	void	and the later
					se hdwinit	_systeminit.c	for	void	void	
					THE DI	(No Definition)	-	-		
					se Fl	No Definition)	-		-	*
					<	0.5				>

Clicking on a variable or function name opens the corresponding source file.



24. Analytical Graphs

CubeSuite+ has an analytical graphing feature, which shows line graphs indicating the relationships between the values of variables, registers, and addresses and time. The graphs shown by CubeSuite+ during on-chip debugging of the RL78 are based on data acquired through the pseudo-RRM function.

🕅 CubeSuite+ Analysis Chart Graph control area Zoom1 Reflect Sempling 2 3 w Analysis method: Sampling Zoom: Cursor: Trigger: Auto, ch1: 00[Rising] Position: 0 Trigger Cursor 🔿 X axis (Time) information information area Y axis (Value) Cursor-/ Target Time: ch1: ch2: ch3: ch4: ch5: ch6: ch7: ch8: Time/Div. 3s 33s246ms ch9: Cursor A Cursor B H < ch1: ch2: ch3: ch4: Channel g_count V dval (none) (none) information area Val/Div: 3.6 Val/Div: 2.0 Val/Div: 25.5 Val/Div: 25.5 ch8: ch7: ch8: ch5: Variable Value Changing Chart // Execution Time(Percentage) Chart

25. Debugging Functions of Emulators (OCD)

Debugging Function		RL78 (E1/E20)	R8C (E8a/E1/E20)	M16C (E8a)	
Breaks Software breaks Hardware breaks		2000 points	255 points	255 points	
		1 to 2 points shared between instruction-execution and access events*	2 to 10 points shared between instruction-execution and access events*	6 to 10 points shared between instruction-execution and access events*	
	Forced breaks Supported Supported		Supported		
Events	Events Number of event points alto 2 points shared between instruction-execution and access events*		0 to 2 points*		
	Usage of events	For hardware breaks only	For hardware breaks only	For hardware breaks only	
Tracing		Branch trace*	Branch trace/Data trace*	Branch trace/Data trace*	
Performance measurement	Measurement item	From the start to the end of execution	From the start to the end of execution	From the start to the end of execution	
	Performance	Resolution: 100 μ s Measurement time: Up to 100 hours	E8a Resolution: 1 ms Note: A timer in the host machine is required as a resource. E1/E20 Resolution: 1 μ s	Resolution: 1 ms Note: A timer in the host machine is required as a resource.	
Pseudo realtime RAM monitor (RRM)		Supported: the CPU is occupied during monitoring.	Supported: the CPU is occupied during monitoring. / Debug DMA Debug DMA		
Dynamic memory modification (DMM)		Supported: the CPU is occupied during modification.	Supported: the CPU is occupied during modification./ Debug DMA	Supported: the CPU is occupied during modification. / Debug DMA	
Hot plug-in		Not supported	Not supported	Not supported	
Security		Authentication of 10-byte ID**	Authentication of 2- or 4-byte ID**	Authentication of 4-byte ID**	
Number of pins taken up		1 (TOOL0)	1 (MODE)	1 or 2 or 7	
Peripheral breaks		Supported	Not supported (R8C/5x: Supported)	Not supported	

* Varies with the MCU.

** For details on differences in specifications of the ID code, refer to 4. Entering an ID Code in this document.





Renesas Electronics Corporation

©2012. Renesas Electronics Corporation, All rights reserved.